
 
 

F.A.Q 
 

Tender for RSBY Dashboard and MIS 
 
Q1. The specified point mentions the need for an Agency to have a minimum average annual 
turnover of Rs.5 Crore over each of the last 3 financial years including FY 2016-17. 
 
Response from GIZ 
GIZ prefers agencies with prior experience of handling turnover of atleast Rs. 5 crore over each of 
the last 3 financial years.  
 
Q2. The specified point mentions the need of atleast 2 reference projects in the last 3 years. But the 
Accessing Eligibility of consulting firm excel also talks about atleast 2 reference project technical 
with a worth of 25 Lakh and atleast 2 reference project worth 25 Lakh 
 
Response from GIZ 
GIZ prefers agencies with prior experience of atleast 2 reference projects technical worth of Rs. 25 
lakh.  
 
Q3. The specified point mentions the need of a Project Head with 12-15 years’ experience in project 
management and consulting 
 
Response from GIZ 
GIZ prefers the Project Head to have a relevant experience of 12-15 years of.  
 
Q4. The specified point mentions the need of a Project Manager with 8-10 years’ experience in 
project management and consulting  
 
Response from GIZ 
GIZ prefers the Project Manager to have atleast 8-10 years of relevant experience and is well versed 
with project management.  
 
 Q5. The specified point mentions the need of 2 Junior Experts with at least 5 years’ experience  
 

Response from GIZ 
GIZ prefers the Junior Experts to have atleast 5 years of experience with advanced data analytics in 
SQL along with exposure to the domain in question.  
 
Q6. We want to know that as per Government Rules will the prequalification clauses will be relaxed 
for registered Start-ups. We thus understand that as a registered start-up with Start-up India 
program of the prime minister, we will be exempted from the pre-conditions of experience and 
turnover. Please confirm whether our understanding is right. 
 

Response from GIZ 
The GIZ rules will apply and not rules of Government of India. GIZ will prefer agencies with prior 
experience in health insurance or health analytics in India and abroad as the task at hand requires the 
same.  
 

Q7. "As per the RFP, is the agency expected to analyze the data collected since 2014 to till date. 
What type to data analysis is expected from us for cleaning the database?" 



 
Response from GIZ 
Cleaning of database is imperative for any advanced data analytics related activity. GIZ expects the 
agency to look for inconsistencies and data issues which could impact the results of any data analysis 
carried out on such data and implement solutions to clean/rectify such inconsistencies. 
 
Q8. What are the different data sources and where are they located? How data is fed into these 
data sources? 
Or  
What is the current mechanism and frequency of data upload – for pre-enrolment data, post 
enrolment data and transaction data? 
 

Response from GIZ 
The current mechanism and frequency of data upload for major 3 input datasets is as below: 

 Pre-Enrolment data is uploaded as district-wise, beneficiary category-wise access files at the 
Central level by MoHFW. This data is uploaded as and when any fresh enrolment activity or 
enrolment of left out families is carried out. 

 Post-Enrolment data is uploaded by Insurance companies or States district-wise as MSSQL 
database files. This data is uploaded upon completion of any fresh enrolment activity or 
enrolment of left out families. 

 Transaction data is uploaded by health care facilities once every day which is stored in MSSQL 
database. 

 

Q9. What is the Database size, type and version of different data sources? 
Or 
The TOR mentions that currently data resides in different servers. What formats does the data exist 
in – e.g. is it txt, csv or .bak file format. 
Or 
Could you specify the total size of data (sample data) likely to be available for developing the data 
cleaning utility and developing standard reports and MIS templates. 
 
Response from GIZ 
The post-enrolment and transaction data exists in MSSQL format which will be shared with the 
agency as a backup in .bak file format and pre-enrolment data will be shared either as access files or 
a .bak file. The size of data from 2014 to till date is expected to be around 1-1.25 TB 
 
 Q10. Are the different existing data sources having any interrelated dependencies on each other? 
Response from GIZ 
Yes 
 

Q11. Is GIZ expecting the agency to design & build the data warehouse? 
Or  
Does the dashboard and MIS solution require a centralised upload utility? Are we correct in 
assuming that solution should allow for a portal where stakeholders (SNA or Insurers) can upload 
data at regular intervals to a centralised location? Or is the solution primarily expected to retrieve 
data from existing servers (from different servers)? Please clarify. 
 
Response from GIZ 
To an extent centralised upload utility exists. The solution is primarily expected to retrieve and collate 
data, automatically (as far as possible) from different existing servers for carrying out further analysis 
including cleaning of data as per the requirement. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Q12. What is the existing IT infrastructure system? How is GIZ currently managing it? 
Or  
Please specify the technical specification of the current RSBY portal. We need this information to 
ensure compatibility between the existing RSBY portal’s integration with the proposed solution. For 
example, is it built using Microsoft technology or JAVA? 
 
Response from GIZ 
Currently, the RSBY portal is using Microsoft .NET Framework and database is managed in MSSQL 
which is managed by Ministry of Health and Family Welfare (MoHFW) and not GIZ. GIZ is supporting 
MoHFW. 
 
Q13. What are the existing pain points in existing IT management & Database Management 
system?  How is GIZ dealing with it? 
Or 
What challenges are you facing in the current process? 
Or  
Please give details on the current state of MIS for enrollment and claims with respect to data format 
 

Response from GIZ 
Main challenges being faced currently are as follows: 

 The 3 main databases as mentioned above are housed on different servers and all are not 
stored in a common database format. 

 There is no scheduled or automatic system to pull data from these 3 servers to take up any 
meaningful holistic analysis of data. The same needs to be done manually as and when reports 
are to be generated.  

 Very limited regular reports being generated. Rest is all on need basis. 
 
 

Q14. Is GIZ having any preference for the technology & flavor for the proposed data warehouse (e.g. 
Cloud / Physical , AWS or Cloudera, etc.…) 
 
Response from GIZ 
GIZ expects the agency to design and build logics to carry out the requisite cleaning and analysis 
including demonstration of a working model (including designing of user interface for dashboard and 
MIS). A separate IT agency will be hired by GIZ, who will be responsible for integrating these intelligent 
logics/databases/working model within RSBY portal. The MIS and dashboard agency will be expected 
to support this IT agency with the implementation/integration in order for the web based MIS and 
dashboard to be fully functional and handle the load of the data. Data warehouse management is the 
responsibility of MoHFW and IT agency will be responsible for technology aspect to integrate the 
dashboard and MIS within existing RSBY portal. 
 
Q15. How many dashboards are you expecting? How frequently need to access dashboards (Daily, 
Weekly or Monthly) 
Or  
We understand that the proposed solution is to be developed as a web based software application 
which provides the data warehousing and dashboard analytics. This application can be developed 
as an independent application / portal with links to RSBY current portal. Any user can access this 
portal/ dashboard through RSBY website. Is this assumption accurate? Does the technical group 
have any other preferences? 
 
 
 
 



 
Response from GIZ 
Proposed solution should be finally functional as a configurable web based software application, 
with the help of IT agency, which provides the data warehousing and dashboard analytics. Any user 
should be able to access this portal/ dashboard through RSBY website. Logics for Role based data 
analysis access will be needed to be built in. For example, Insurance Company should have access to 
such data analysis as is deemed by MoHFW to be available to them for only such districts which are 
serviced by them. The dashboard should be configurable as per need in real time and should also be 
able to provide weekly and monthly reports on defined parameters. 
 
Q16. Do you have any specific tool preference (Tableau, Qlikview , Yellowfin….)? 
Response from GIZ 
As of now there is no preference, however this can be discussed in detail after allocation of tender. 
 
Q17. Where is the transactional data residing? 
 
Response from GIZ 
It is residing on a server managed by MoHFW. 
 
Q18. Is any ETL tool being used? 
 
Response from GIZ 
No ETL tool is currently being used. The agency can suggest appropriate ETL tools, after studying the 
existing RSBY database, which could be procured and implemented by MoHFW. 
 
Q19. How many users are going to use the final visualization? 
 
Response from GIZ 
It is expected that Officers/Representatives of MoHFW, States, Insurance Companies and Hospitals 
are able to use this MIS system through their role based logins. Some part of this MIS and/or 
dashboard may also be made available publically. 
 
Q20. How the security should be defined? Row level or user level 
 
Response from GIZ 
This can be discussed in detail after allocation of tender. 
 
Q21. How will the data be shared for dash boarding purpose? 
 
Response from GIZ 
In an external Hard disk drive provided by the agency. 
 
Q22.What is the duration of the data to be used for visualization 
Response from GIZ 
All data since the start of the RSBY in 2008. 
 
Q23. For the study of data base management and data sharing process of two state insurance, we 
would expect GIZ and MoHFW to facilitate the process of linking us and ensuring access and 
cooperation of local agencies. Can you please confirm that? 
 

Response from GIZ 
Yes, GIZ and/or MoHFW will facilitate 
 
 



 
Q24. Can GIZ and MoHFW outline the expected requirements for these other activities. For example, 
for each activity are there any tentative estimates for number of training and capacity building 
initiatives, frequency of RSBY meetings for analysis, number of visits for travel to states for training 
/ related meetings and number of publications that the vendor would be expected to contribute to 
during the project duration. Understanding these requirements would help us cost the proposal 
accurately and allocate these roles to appropriate team members. Even a ball park estimate would 
be helpful at this stage. 
Or  
How many training sessions are to be conducted for Dashboard training and at which locations? 
 
Response from GIZ 
The same is not finalised as yet. GIZ is expecting 1 visit each of around 3 days to around 4-5 locations 
out of Delhi comprising of a 2 member team in total during the contract duration. Other meetings 
and trainings are expected to be scheduled in Delhi-NCR. 
 
Q25. As mentioned in the TOR, the solution requires a map based interactive dashboard. Many open 
source utilities are available for such dashboard. Does the GIZ or MoHFW have any preferred 
software for this functionality?  
 
Response from GIZ 
There is no preference, however this can be discussed in detail after allocation of tender. 
 
Q26. Please clarify on the invoicing requirements and payments of reimbursable expenses. Do we 
have submit travel/accommodation bills for reimbursement? 
 
Response from GIZ 
This shall be clarified later at the time of contracting  
 
Q27. Please clarify as to how much work has already been done by the previous vendor  
 
Response from GIZ 
Previous vendor was provided with all RSBY data till 2013 and the following was accomplished by them 
amongst other activities: 

 Defining what Data is needed for MIS, reports and dashboard generation 

 Data cleaning by preparing a Primary and Secondary checklist 

 Designing various templates for Standard reporting 

 The standard reports populated with analysis of all data 

 Logics for triggers for fraud and abuse listed out 

 Creation of a Dashboard with data till 2013 

 Disease profiling and clinical analysis 
 

Q28. Please clarify if the selected agency has to undertake the bid process management for hiring 
of IT vendor? 
 
Response from GIZ 
No. The IT agency will be engaged by GIZ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Q29.It is mentioned that the selected agency will undertake data cleaning, data enhancement / 
filling and analysis using intelligent logics and information from other related fields. The selected 
agency will design the process and logarithms to clean the data.  Whether selected agency will be 
responsible for cleaning/enhancement of data for entire country? If yes, whether the agency will 
bear cost of tools/software/harware? 
 
Response from GIZ 
Yes, selected agency will be responsible for analyzing all data collected from 2014 till now and study 
for inconsistencies, issues and their root causes for relevant solutions/logics to be put in place. 
 
The agency will be expected to clean this set of data as per the logics designed by them through their 
own resources. The agency will then be expected to support the IT agency in integration of the 
proposed solution with the RSBY portal. 
 
Q30. It is mentioned that the selected agency will introduce mechanisms / logic / codes to be 
implemented in the existing software for generating standard reports, MIS, dashboard and triggers 
for fraud and abuse control. Further the agency will design and create a configurable role defined 
Map-based Dashboard for stakeholders at various levels, analysing dynamic data which also throws 
triggers and alerts for fraud and abuse control. Whether selected agency will responsible for 
creation and deployment of dashboard? If yes, whether the agency will bear cost of 
tools/software/hardware? 
 
Response from GIZ 
The agency will need to create and demonstrate a working model of Dashboard through their own 
resources including hardware and software.  The agency will then be expected to support the IT 
agency in integration of the final approved Dashboard with the RSBY portal to work in an automatic 
manner. 
 
Q31. It is mentioned that the selected agency will be responsible for application of statistical tools 
to predict future course of trends. Whether selected agency will bear the cost of procurement of 
tools/hardware/software? 
 
Response from GIZ 
The agency will be expected to introduce logics to be used on RSBY database to carry out predictive 
data analysis through their own resources. The agency is not expected to demonstrate such analysis 
through any proprietary tool. 
 
Q32. Implementation of logics and tools in the existing software/ integration with RSBY web-portal 
for quality improvement and automation of MIS reports, Dashboard, Interactive Map and 
triggers/alerts for fraud and abuse control. Design and creation of a configurable role defined map-
based Dashboard for stakeholders at various levels, analysing dynamic data which also throws 
triggers and alerts for fraud and abuse control. What is exit point of the selected agency for the 
dashboard? After how many states/districts/hospitals on-boarding, will selected agency exit from 
the contract? 
 
Response from GIZ 
This dashboard will be based on database which is available on servers at MoHFW. There is no 
onboarding with States expected. The exit point for dashboard will be when the IT agency is able to 
integrate the dashboard (dashboard goes live) with the RSBY portal.  
 
 
 
 



 
Q33. Please clarify the meaning of results based management and monitoring in relevance of the 
desired experience 
 
Response from GIZ 
In relevance of the desired experience, Result based management may be translated as experience in 
utilizing results information which was collected, accumulated, gathered and analyzed during the 
project management process in future projects' planning and implementation.  
 
Q34. Please clarify the details about the pool of experts mentioned in the assessment grid 
 
Response from GIZ 
There is no marking for “pool of experts” mentioned at Row 81 and 95 of the technical assessment 
grid. Otherwise, pool of experts for all practical purposes is the same composition of experts as 
outlined in section 7 (Profile of the Agency) of the Terms of Reference on page 9. 
 
Q35. What are payment milestones? How much payment will be released after each deliverables? 
What is definition of each milestone? 
 
Response from GIZ 
Payment milestones will be in line with the deliverables mentioned on page 6 of the ToR. The amount 
of each payment will be decided at the time of contracting. 
  
Q36. It is requested to held a pre bid meeting 
 
Response from GIZ 
GIZ will not be able to accommodate a pre-bid meeting. 
 
Q37. It is requested that the bidders may be given time of 2-3 weeks for submission from date of 
publication of answer to queries.  
 
Response from GIZ 
Due to time constraint, GIZ will not be able to push the last date of submission of bids. 
 
Q38. Whether there is prescribed format for submission of technical proposal? Can Proposals be 
submitted in PPT format? 
 
Response from GIZ 
There is no prescribed format. 
 
Q39. In commercial format, it is mentioned that the bidder has to provide estimate for manpower 
and travel/accommodation only. It is understood that the bidder is not responsible for any 
hardware/software/tools/training material. Is this understanding correct? 
 
Response from GIZ 
GIZ will not be bearing any additional cost for hardware/software/tools used by the Agency as GIZ 
expects the Agency to have adequate resources already available in order to carry out the tasks at 
hand. 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 
Q40. What would be the role of The IT agency engaged by GIZ? How it will be different from role 
of selected agency? 
 
Response from GIZ 
IT agency will be responsible for integration of the MIS and Dashboard, created by the selected agency, 
with the RSBY portal. They will be supported by the selected agency to ensure integration.   
  
Q41. The requirements mentioned mainly talk about design of processes for Extraction of Data, 
Profiling of Data, Cleansing and Report Format. Is the requirement only restricted to the Process 
part, or does it also include architecture and Design of the DWH/Data Mart/MIS Databases, the 
underlying architecture etc.? Who would code and develop the reports? Would it be the same 
agency or is the scope of work only responsible to hand holding some IT implementation vendor? 
Who will own the overall Solution Architecture and Implementation? 
 
Response from GIZ 
The selected agency will be expected to build logics, code them and develop the MIS reports and 
dashboard. 
 
Q42. Does the Scope of work include post go live  - maintenance and operations strategy? 
 
Response from GIZ 
No 
 
Q43. Each state scheme will have customized requirement for integration and dashboarding? For 
how many schemes, the selected agency will be responsible for data sharing? 
 
Response from GIZ 
There is no separate data sharing and dashboarding expected other than the data available with 
MoHFW. The selected agency can suggest improvements/fixes in the manner this data is collected 
across all States uniformly, collated and stored. 
  
Q44. There might be delay on part of state Government in data sharing, API exposure, 
performance of IT vendor. How will this impact milestones and payment for the selected agency? 
 
Response from GIZ 
No data sharing/API exposure from States is expected.  
 
Q45. How many concurrent users are expected to operate on the data warehouse at peak time? 
 
Response from GIZ 
About 1000 
 

Q46.     We would like to have certain changes / modification some clauses of General Terms &    
                    Conditions? 

 

Answer :    The General Terms & Conditions (GTCC) attached with tender package are non-negotiable     
                     and  will be integral part of Contract. 


